IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

RICHARD MARCOLINI, and MERCEDES ACOSTA,

Petitioners,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

CASE NOS. 85,225 85,226 (CONSOLIDATED)

PETITIONERS' BRIEF ON THE MERITS

RICHARD L. JORANDBY Public Defender 15th Judicial Circuit

ANTHONY CALVELLO Assistant Public Defender Florida Bar No. 266345 Criminal Justice Building 421 Third Street, 6th Floor West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (407) 355-7600

Attorney for Richard Marcolini and Mercedes Acosta

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioners were the Defendants and Respondent was the Prosecution in the Criminal Division of the County Court of Palm Beach County, Florida.

In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The symbol "R" will denote Record on Appeal.

The symbol "T" will denote Hearing Transcripts.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner Richard Marcolini was charged by Information filed in the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Palm Beach County, County Court Division, with the offense of theft of utilities in violation of Section 812.14(3), *Florida Statutes* (1991). He was charged with theft of electricity as a result of the discovery of a wire having been inserted in hole drilled in his electric meter. Petitioner Mercedes Acosta was charged with a similar offense.

Petitioner Richard Marcolini filed a pre-trial motion to declare Section 812.14, *Fla. Stat.* unconstitutional. R 17-32. A hearing was held on his motion. At the conclusion of the hearing, the trial court ruled that the statutory presumption contained in § 812.14(3) was unconstitutional because "this raises an impermissible presumption of guilt that isn't really rationally related to - I mean this is not beyond a reasonable doubt....so I think that it is, like Defense said, an unconstitutional shifting of the burden. And I declare that Section of the law to be unconstitutional. And I think it could be written in such a way that it could be constitutional." R 59-60. The court rejected Petitioner's alternative argument that § 812.14(2)(c) was void for vagueness. The trial court also granted Petitioner Acosta's motion to declare said statute unconstitutional.

Respondent-State of Florida appealed these rulings to the Fourth District Court of Appeal on the basis of a certified question. The Fourth District reversed the trial court's ruling that the presumption contained in § 812.14(3) was facially unconstitutional. See *State v. Marcolini*, 20 Fla. L. Weekly D300 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 1, 1995)[See Appendix 1]. The Fourth District also reversed the ruling of the trial court in the companion case, *State v. Acosta*, Fla. L. Weekly D298 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 1, 1995) [See Appendix 2].

Timely Notice of Discretionary Review was filed by Petitioners in each case. This court consolidated both causes for purposes of review.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The statutory presumption contained in Section 812.14(3) is unconstitutional under the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution. Petitioners submit that said statute creates an unconstitutional *mandatory* presumption which infringes on their right to require the State to prove all elements of the offense necessary to establish their guilt beyond a reasonable doubt. Further, Section 812.14(3) unconstitutionally shifts the burden of proof from the prosecution to the defendant on the elements of the offense. Since the presumption is mandatory, the presumed fact must flow beyond a reasonable doubt from the underlying facts. But given the fact that numerous reasons independent of the customer's commission of the diversion of the utility services can exist, it does not follow beyond a reasonable doubt that a customerhome owner committed the offense as this statutory presumption commands.

Assuming *arguendo*, this Honorable Court finds this presumption to be "permissive," Petitioners submit that it still violates the Due Process Clause because the presumed fact does not "more likely than not" flow from the underlying facts. Hence this Honorable Court should *affirm* the order of the Trial Court declaring Section 812.14(3), *Fla. Stat.* (1991) unconstitutional.

ARGUMENT

THE STATUTORY PRESUMPTION CREATED BY SECTION 812.14(3) IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL UNDER THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE.

Petitioners were both charged with violations of Section 812.14(2)(c) which proscribes trespass and larceny with relation to utility fixtures or services. Section 812.14(2)(c), *Fla. Stat.* (1991),¹ provides that it is unlawful to:

Use or receive the direct benefit from the use of a utility, cable television service, or community antenna line service knowing, or under such circumstances as would induce a reasonable person to believe, that such direct benefits have resulted from any tampering with, altering of, or injury to any connection, wire, conductor meter, pipe, conduit, line, cable, transformer, amplifier or other apparatus or device owned, operated, or controlled by such utility or cable television service or community antenna line service, for the purpose of avoiding payment.

Section 812.14(3) creates a statutory presumption of violation of Section

812.14(2)(c), Fla. Stat., which provides:

(3) The presence on property in the actual possession of a person of any device or alteration which affects the diversion or use of the services of utility so as to avoid the registration of such use by or on a meter installed by the utility or so as to otherwise avoid the reporting of use of such service for payment shall be prima facie evidence of the violation of this section by such person; however, this presumption shall not apply unless:

(a) The presence of such a device or alteration can be attributed only to a deliberate act in furtherance of an intent to avoid payment for utility services;

(b) The person charged has received the direct benefit of the reduction of the cost of such utility services; and

(c) The customer or recipient of the utility services has

¹ Section 812.14, *Florida Statutes* was amended in 1992 to reflect the creation of § 812.15 governing theft of cable television service. To the extent that the statute concerns theft of electricity, § 812.14(2)(c) and § 812.14(3) remain substantially the same. See *Florida Statutes* (Supp. 1992).

received the direct benefit of such utility service for at least one full billing cycle.

§ 812.14(3) [Emphasis Supplied].

The issue before this Court is the constitutionality of this statutory presumption which can be assessed on its face without reference to possible jury instructions as this Court did in *MacMillan v. State*, 358 So. 2d 547, 549 (Fla. 1978), holding unconstitutional the statutory presumption established by Section 812.14(3), *Fla. Stat.* (Supp. 1976), a predecessor statute to Section 812.14(3), *Fla. Stat.* (1991) ("We find that it cannot be said with substantial assurance that the presumed fact that the defendant is guilty of violation of Section 812.14, *Florida Statutes* (Supp. 1976) is more likely than not to flow from the proven fact of possession of the premises or receipt of benefits."). See also *Leary v. United States*, 395 U.S. 6, 89 S. Ct. 1532 (1969) (Statutory presumption held unconstitutional under the due process clause); *Government of Virgin Islands v. Parrilla*, 7 F. 3d 1097 (3d Cir. 1993); *Norton v. Superior Court*, 171 Ariz. 155, 829 P. 2d 345 (App. 1992).

The Due Process Clause protects the accused against a conviction except upon proof beyond a reasonable doubt of every fact necessary to constitute the crime with which he is charged. In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358, 364, 90 S. Ct. 1068 (1970). The presumption of innocence is a basic component of a defendant's fair trial and therefore, a crucial aspect of due process in the criminal justice system. Estelle v. Williams, 425 U.S. 501, 96 S. Ct. 1691 (1976). These two concepts, the presumption of innocence and the requirement that the State prove each element of a crime beyond a reasonable doubt are two of the most fundamental features of our criminal justice system.

Of course, proving the elements of the crime with evidentiary or "basic" facts often calls for the trier-of-fact to make an inferential "leap" between the facts presented to it and the element of the criminal offense that must be proven. In order to facilitate this inferential leap, the legislature has on occasion passed legislation which provides that proof of an evidentiary fact *can or may* be construed as proof of an element of the crime. The effect of such legislation is the creation of a presumption that flows from the established evidentiary fact.

In criminal prosecutions, a statutory presumption must *not* undermine the factfinder's responsibility at trial, based on evidence presented by the State to find the ultimate facts beyond a reasonable doubt. See *Ulster County Court v. Allen*, 442 U.S. 140, 156, 99 S. Ct. 1213, 2225 (1979).

The United States Supreme Court has delineated three (3) separate types of criminal presumptions: 1) permissive; 2) mandatory rebuttable; and 3) mandatory conclusive. See *Francis v. Franklin*, 471 U.S. 307, 314 & n. 2, 105 S. Ct. 1965, 1971 & n. 2, 85 L. Ed. 2d 344 (1985); *Ulster County*, 442 U.S. at 157 & n. 16, 99 S. Ct. at 2224 & n. 16. A permissive inference or presumption allows, but does *not* require, the trier of fact to infer the presumed or elemental fact from proof of the basic fact and does not shift the burden of production or persuasion to the defendant." *Ulster County*, 442 U.S. at 157, 99 S. Ct. at 2224. If the prosecution relies on a permissive presumption as one part of its case, only a "rational connection" is required between the basic facts proved and the ultimate fact presumed, and the latter must be "more likely than not"" to flow from the former. *Id.* at 165-67, 99 S. Ct. at 2228-30.

Mandatory presumptions, however, pose greater potential for constitutional problems because they may affect not only the strength of the "beyond a reasonable doubt" burden but also the *placement of that burden*. A mandatory rebuttable presumption tells the factfinder that they *must* find the presumed element upon proof of the basic fact, unless the defendant comes forward with some evidence to rebut the

presumed connection between the two facts. Ulster County, 442 U.S. at 157 & n. 16, 99 S. Ct. at 2224 & n. 16. Once the defendant satisfies this burden of producing evidence to rebut the presumed fact, the ultimate burden of persuasion returns to the State. Id. at 157-68 n. 16, 99 S. Ct. at 2224-26 n. 16. Although the defendant may present evidence to rebut the presumption, if the defendant chooses not to do so, the factfinder must accept the presumption as true, even if it is the sole evidence of an element of the offense. In such a case, "since the prosecution bears the burden of establishing guilt, it may not rest its case entirely on a presumption unless the fact proved is sufficient to support the inference of guilt beyond a reasonable doubt." Id. at 166-67, 99 S. Ct. at 2229-30. With mandatory presumptions, the statute commands that because one fact is proven, another fact (presumed fact) must automatically follow. This court must look to the language of the statute rather than evidence at trial or jury instructions to determine the constitutional validity of the mandatory presumption. A statute creating a mandatory presumption is "[a] fat more troublesome evidentiary device" because it may "affect not only the strength of the 'no reasonable doubt' burden" but also if the presumption is rebuttable, the "placement of that burden." Ulster County Court, 442 U.S. at 157, 99 S. Ct. at 2225. The mandatory presumption "tells the trier that he or they must find the elemental fact upon proof of the basic fact..." Id. In effect, the prosecution is spared the burden of having to adduce evidence of the presumed fact at every trial. See Leary, 395 U.S. at 38, 89 S. Ct. at 1549.

More recently, in Yates v. Evatt, 500 U.S. 391, 111 S. Ct. 1884 (1991), the United State Supreme Court explained that:

"[A] mandatory presumption, even though rebuttable, is different from a permissive presumption, which "does not require ... the trier of fact to infer the elemental fact from proof by the prosecutor of the basic one and ... places no burden of any kind on the defendant." Ulster County Court

7

v. Allen, 441 U.S. 140, 157, 99 S. Ct. 2213, 2224, 60 L. Ed. 2d 777 (1979). A permissive presumption merely allows an inference to be drawn and is constitutional so long as the inference would not be irrational. See *Francis v. Franklin*, supra, 471 U.S. at 314-315, 105 S. Ct. at 1971."

Yates, 111 S. Ct. at 1892 n. 7.

A. Section 812.14(3) is a mandatory presumption.

Section 812.14(3) creates the following statutory presumption: "The presence on property in the actual possession of a person of any device or alteration which affects the diversion or use of the services of a utility so as to avoid the registration of such use by or on a meter *shall be prima facie evidence* of the violation of this statute" except the presumption will not apply unless three conditions in Section 812.14(3) (a), (b), and (c). are met.²

Citing State v. Rolle, 560 So. 2d 1154, 1157 (Fla. 1990), cert. denied, 498 U.S. 867, 111 S. Ct. 181 (1990), the Fourth District held that the phrase "shall be prima facie evidence" creates a permissive presumption, not a mandatory presumption. In Rolle, this Court concluded that the statutory presumption of the DUI statute, which provides that proof of "0.10 percent or more by weight of alcohol in the person's blood shall be prima facie evidence" of impairments create only a permissive inference. However, Petitioners submit that the Rolle decision was based on a misapplication of the pertinent U.S. Supreme Court decisions including Yates v. Evatt, supra, which was decided in 1991, after the Rolle decision.

The Fourth District also cites *State v. Ferrari*, 398 So. 2d 804, 806 (Fla. 1981), in support of its position. In *Miller v. Norvell*, 775 F. 2d 1572 (11th Cir. 1985), cert. denied, 476 U.S. 1126 (1986), the Eleventh Circuit held that Section 713.34(3), *Fla. Stat.* (1979),

² Although this provision contains three (3) exceptions based on the arguments, *infra*, this does not render said statutory presumption constitutional.

a criminal statute prohibiting the misapplication of funds by a building contractor which contained the following statutory presumption, that failure to spend funds as agreed upon "shall constitute prima facie evidence of intent to defraud,"³ created an *unlawful mandatory* rebuttable presumption of intent, and was unconstitutional, both on its face and as applied to the contractor defendant. It must be noted that this Court's decision in *Ferrari*, which held this same statutory presumption to be "permissive" was decided *prior* to the United States Supreme Court's decision in *Francis v. Franklin, supra.* See *State v. Rolle*, 560 So. 2d 1154, 1161 (Fla. 1990) (Burkett, J. Concurring); *Wilhelm v. State*, 568 So. 2d 1, 3 (Fla. 1990); *cf Fitzgerald v. State*, 339 So. 2d 209 (Fla. 1976).

To determine whether the presumption contained in Section 812.14(3) is mandatory or permissive, this Court must look to the actual words used in the statute. The language in the statute is unambiguous: "shall be prima facie evidence of the violation of this section." It is clear that the use of the verb "shall" makes it mandatory or obligatory to apply this presumption. See generally *Fowler v. State*, 255 So. 2d 513, 515 (Fla. 1971); *State v. Gelber*, 573 So. 2d 92 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991). In *Black's Law Dictionary* (6th Ed. 1990), "shall" is defined: "as used in statutes, contracts, or the like, this word is generally imperative or mandatory. In common or ordinary parlance, and its ordinary signification, the term "shall" is a word of command, and one which has always or which must be given a compulsory meaning; as denoting obligation." Applying the tests delineated by the Supreme Court, the presumption is clearly mandatory because the language of the statute compels the finder of fact to find intent without deliberation thereon. See *Sandstrom*.

In Government of Virgin Islands v. Parrilla, supra, the defendant was charged with assault with intent to commit mayhem. The Virgin Islands Statute defines mayhem as

³ "Prima Facie evidence means evidence of such nature as is sufficient to establish a fact and which, if unrebutted, remains sufficient for that purpose." *Miller*, 775 F. 2d at 1574; *Hiram Walker and Sons v. Kirk Line et. al.*, 963 F. 2d 327, 331 n. 5 (11th Cir. 1992).

follows:

(a) Whoever willfully and with intent to commit a felony or to injure, disfigure or disable, inflicts upon the person of another any injury which -

(1) seriously disfigures his person by any mutilation thereof;

(2) destroys or disables any member or organ of his body; or

(3) seriously diminishes his physical vigor by the injury of any member organ -

shall be imprisoned not more than 15 years.

(b) The infliction of injury is presumptive evidence of the intent required by subsection (a) of this section.

14 VIC § 1341 (1992)

The Third Circuit utilized the framework delineated in Leary and Ulster County

Court to analyze the statutory presumption:

We must first interpret the language of the statute to determine whether the presumption is mandatory or permissive. If we find the presumption is mandatory, we then go on to examine the legislature's reasoning for the presumption, to evaluate the rational connection between the proved and the presumed fact, and to investigate the extent to which the basic and elemental facts coincide. These steps will enable us to determine the constitutional validity of the mandatory presumption.

Id. at 1103.

The Court concluded that Section 1341's presumption was mandatory, not

permissive:

The language of Section 1341(b) states concisely: 'The infliction of injury is presumptive evidence of the intent required by subsection (a) of this section [to commit mayhem].' Applied to the facts of this case, this plain statutory language clearly sets up the following presumption: If the government establishes that Duggan's foot was injured by Parrilla's act of shooting at him (the basic fact), then the jury must presume that Parrilla *intended* to commit a felony, that is, to injure, disfigure or disable Duggan (the elemental fact), and Parrilla must be convicted of assault with intent to commit mayhem.

We find that section 1341(b)'s commanding language

imposes a mandatory presumption. The statute's presumption of intent creates an inferential strength of guilt through proof of the basic fact of injury that shifts the burden of persuasion on the elemental fact of intent into Parrilla. It does not, by contrast, merely impose a burden of production on the defendant that, if satisfied through introduction of 'any evidence,' allows the presumption to evaporate and to require the jury to convict on the strength of the remaining evidence.

Id at 1103.

In United States v. Kim, 884 F. 2d 189 (5th Cir. 1989), the defendant challenged the presumption contained in 26 United States Code Section 6065 which provides:

"The fact that an individual's name is signed to a return, statement, or other document shall be prima facie evidence for all purposes that the return, statements or other document was actually signed by him.

[Emphasis Added].

The Fifth Circuit initially held that this was a "mandatory presumption," i.e., that they must find an "ultimate fact" on proof of a "basic fact," unless the defendants present evidence to rebut the connection between the two. See *County Court of Ulster County v. Allen*, 442 U.S. 140, 157, 99 S. Ct. 2213, 2225 (1979)." *Kim*, 884 F. 2d at 194. The Fifth Circuit concluded, after applying the appropriate test to this mandatory presumption, that it was constitutional. In *Miller v. Norvell*, the Eleventh Circuit held that the phrase "shall constitute prima facie evidence" created a mandatory rebuttable presumption.

In State v. Kipf, 234 Neb. 227, 450 N.W. 2d 397 (1990), the Nebraska Supreme Court examined a jury instruction concerning proof for the offense of intimidation by telephone call, specifically *Neb. Rev. Stat.*, Section 28-1310(2) (Reissue 1989), which provides: "The use of indecent, lewd, or obscene language or the making of a threat or lewd suggestion shall be prima facie evidence of intent to terrify, intimidate, threaten, harass, annoy, or offend." The jury was instructed verbatim from this statute. The Nebraska Supreme Court held that the "prima facie evidence," language used in Section 28-1310(2) actually resulted in a "mandatory and conclusive presumption of criminal intent, that is, factual establishment of the telephone call with its statutorily prohibited conduct necessarily ("shall") results in the conclusively established criminal intent of the caller." *Kipf*, 450 N.W. 2d at 410.

In Sheriff, Clark County v. Boyer, 637 P. 2d 832 (Nev. 1981), the defendant was charged with the embezzlement of a rented vehicle⁴ which contained the following statutory presumption:

Whenever a person who has leased a rented or leased vehicle willfully and intentionally fails to return the vehicle to its owner within 72 hours after the lease or rental agreement has expired, such person *shall be presumed to have embezzled the vehicle*.

NRS 205.312

The Nevada Supreme Court found this statutory presumption to be unconstitutional:

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