IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

SID J. WHITE

JUN 1 1995

RICHARD MARCOLINI AND MERCEDES ACOSTA,

Petitioners,

By _____Chief Deputy Clerk

CASE NOS.

85,225

85,226 (Consolidated)

STATE OF FLORIDA,

v.

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

JOAN FOWLER BUREAU CHIEF, WEST PALM BEACH SENIOR ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #339067

MYRA J. FRIED
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fla. Bar #879487
1655 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd.
Third Floor
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
(407)688-7759
FAX NO. 407-688-7771

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioners were the Defendants and Respondent was the Prosecution in the Criminal Division of the County Court of Palm Beach County, Florida.

In this merits brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The following symbols will be used:

"R" will represent the record on appeal; and "T" will represent the transcripts of the hearing below.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Respondent agrees with Petitioners' Statement of the Case and Facts.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The phrase "shall be prima facie evidence" creates a permissive presumption which the trier of fact is free to accept or reject. The Fourth District Court of Appeal correctly reversed the trial court's dismissal of the instant cases since the statute involved, §812.14(2)(c), Florida Statutes, is constitutional. This Honorable Court has previously determined the mandatory/permissive dichotomy in State v. Rolle, 560 So. 2d 1154 (Fla. 1990); State v. Ferrari, 398 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 1981); and Wilhelm v. State, 568 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1990).

The statute also passes the "rational connection" and "more likely than not" tests to the reasonable doubt standard as posed by the United States Supreme Court in a number of cases.

ARGUMENT

THE STATUTORY PRESUMPTION CREATED BY SECTION 812.14(3) IS NOT UNCONSTITUTIONAL UNDER THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE.

The Petitioners were charged with violating §812.14(2)(c), Florida Statutes (1991). That section proscribes trespass and larceny in relation to utility fixtures or services. The trial court found that subsection 3 of that same statute created an unconstitutional mandatory presumption. The lower court thus dismissed the information, before any trial was held. Respondent maintains that contrary to the trial court's ruling, and pursuant to the Fourth District Court of Appeal's opinion, the phrase "shall be prima facie evidence" creates a permissive presumption which the trier of fact is free to accept or reject. See State v. Rolle, 560 So. 2d 1154, 1157 (Fla. 1990), cert. denied, 498 U.S. 867, 111 S.Ct. 181, 112 L.Ed.2d 144 (1990); State v. Waters, 436 So. 2d 66 (Fla. 1983); State v. Ferrari, 398 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 1981).

The Fourth District Court of Appeal found that "post-MacMillan decisions by the United States Supreme Court and the Florida Supreme Court hold that the constitutionality of a statutory provision such as this is not to be determined facially, but rather in light of the facts and jury instructions. The trial court's determination that this provision is unconstitutional on its face is therefore erroneous." State v.

Section 812.14, Florida Statutes, was amended in 1992 to reflect the creation of §812.15, which governs the theft of cable television service. To the extent that the statute concerns theft of electricity, §812.14(2)(c) and §812.14(3) remain substantially the same. See §812.14, Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1992).

Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly D300 (Fla. 4th DCA February 1,
1995).

The lower appellate court referred to this Court's citation to <u>Tot v. United States</u>, 319 U.S. 463, 63 S.Ct. 1241, 87 L.Ed. 2d 1549 (1943), in the case of <u>MacMillan v. State</u>, 358 So. 2d 547 (Fla. 1978). The relationship between a statutory presumption and the due process clause were discussed by the United States Supreme Court as follows:

[T]he due process clauses of the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments set limits upon the power of Congress or that of a state legislature to make the proof of one fact or group of facts evidence of the existence of the ultimate fact on which guilt is predicated. . . .

Under our decisions, a statutory presumption cannot be sustained if there be no rational connection between the fact proved and the ultimate fact presumed, if the inference of the one from proof of the other is arbitrary because of lack of connection between the two This is not to say in common experience. that a valid presumption may not be created upon a view of relation broader than that a jury might take in a specific case. where the inference is so strained as not to reasonable relation have а circumstances of life as we know them it is not competent for the legislature to create it as a rule governing the procedure of courts.

MacMillan v. State, 358 So. 2d at 548-549. See State v.
Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at D300-301.

Next, the Fourth District considered <u>Leary v. United States</u>, 395 U.S. 6, 89 S. Ct. 1532, 23 L. Ed. 2d 57 (1969). The <u>Leary</u> Court referred to the rational connection test as applied in <u>Tot</u>, determining that in order for a statutory presumption to be

constitutional, there had to be "substantial assurance that the presumed fact is more likely than not to flow from the proved fact on which it is made to depend." <u>State v. Marcolini</u>, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at D301.

This Court held in MacMillan that §812.14(3), Florida Statutes, was facially unconstitutional. Ulster County Court v. Allen, 442 U.S. 140, 99 S.Ct. 2213, 60 L. Ed. 2d 777 (1979), was decided after MacMillan. In Allen, the Court was required to determine the constitutionality of a New York statute which provided that the presence of a firearm in an automobile was "presumptive evidence of its possession by all persons occupying such automobile". Certain exceptions were allowed. State v. Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at D301.

The United States Supreme Court found that there was a rational connection between the basic facts and the ultimate facts presumed. Allen at 2228. The Court also determined that the trial court's instructions to the jury made it clear that the provision was only permissive, that it could be ignored, and that there was a mandatory presumption of innocence. Allen at 2226. The Allen Court found the provision constitutional. State v. Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at D301.

In the <u>Marcolini</u> opinion, the Fourth District Court of Appeal relied upon <u>State v. Rolle</u>, 560 So. 2d 1154 (Fla. 1990). In <u>Rolle</u>, this Court held that the phrase "shall be prima facie evidence" created a permissive inference. <u>Rolle</u>, 560 So. 2d at 1157. As the Fourth District's opinion points out, this Court evaluated the statute in light of the record, instead of on its

face, as the <u>MacMillan</u> court did. In <u>Rolle</u>, this Court held that there was no constitutional error. "Shall be prima facie evidence" was held to be crucial to the determination that the provision created a permissive inference, not a mandatory presumption." <u>Rolle</u>, 560 So. 2d at 1157. <u>State v. Marcolini</u>, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at D301.

The Fourth District Court of Appeals discussed the rational connection test in its opinion. The appellate court also determined that State v. Ferrari, 398 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 1981), also supported the conclusion that the instant case passed the rational connection test. State v. Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at D301-302. The Ferrari Court held that "a statutory provision which made it prima facie evidence of criminal fraud for a contractor to use a payment made by the owner for any purpose other than paying for the labor or services performed on the owner's property passed the rational connection test."

The Eleventh Circuit held the Ferrari provision unconstitutional in Miller v. Norvell, 775 F. 2d 1572 (11th Cir. However, as the Marcolini appellate court held below, the supreme court cited Ferrari as authority for its 1990 decision in Rolle, noting that Miller was contrary to Ferrari. The Fourth District Court of Appeal below stated that Miller may be of limited precedential validity in light of Defuentes v. Dugger, 923 F. 2d 801 (11th Cir. 1991). State v. Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at 301.2

It should be noted that in the Slip Opinion for <u>State v.</u> <u>Marcolini</u>, the last sentence of the opinion's footnote 2 on page 10 is as follows: "<u>Miller</u> may be of limited precedential

The Fourth District Court of Appeal determined that this Court has overruled MacMillan in Ferrari and Rolle. Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at D302. The Fourth District found that the Rolle court cited State v. Waters, 436 So. 2d 66 (Fla. 1983), where stealthy entry was prima facie evidence of an intent to commit burglary; Fitzgerald v. State, 339 So. 2d 209 (Fla. 1976), where the failure to return a rental car within 72 hours of the due date was prima facie evidence of auto theft; and Ferrari. The Fourth District found that although MacMillan was decided after Fitzgerald, the Rolle court did not attempt to distinguish the statute in MacMillan from the statute in Rolle.

A. Section 812.14(3) is a permissive presumption.

This Honorable Court should affirm the Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision in both the Marcolini and Acosta cases. Respondent contends that the trial court should not dismissed the cases as it did before a trial was held. the cases cited by the trial court involved the interpretation of a jury instruction. Yates v. Evatt, U.S. ____, 111 S.Ct. 1884, 114 L.Ed.2d 432 (1991); Francis v. Franklin, 471 U.S. 307, 105 S.Ct. 1965, 85 L.Ed.2d 344 (1985); County Court of Ulster County v. Allen, 442 U.S. 140, 99 S.Ct. 2213, 60 L.Ed.2d 777 (1979); United States v. Kim, 884 F.2d 189 (5th Cir. 1989); Miller v. Norvell, 775 F.2d 1572 (11th Cir. 1985), cert. denied, 476 U.S. 1126, 106 S.Ct. 1995, 90 L.Ed.2d 675 (1986). determine the constitutionality of cases which also

validity in light of <u>Defuentes v. Dugger</u>, 923 F. 2d 801 (11th Cir. 1991). However, the opinion, as printed in the Florida Law Weekly on page D302, appears to have omitted that sentence.

underlying statute, the reviewing court evaluates the presumption in light of the court's instructions to the jury. See <u>Ulster County Court</u>, 442 U.S. at 160-163, 60 L.Ed.2d at 793-795, see also <u>Id.</u> 442 U.S. at 157, 60 L.Ed.2d at 792, n. 16; <u>State v. Rolle</u>, 560 So. 2d 1154 (Fla. 1990); <u>Wilhelm v. State</u>, 568 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1990).

Also, the trial court erroneously determined that the statutory presumption was unconstitutional. Inferences and presumptions are а "staple of our adversary system factfinding." Ulster County Court v. Allen, 442 U.S. 140, 156, 99 S.Ct. 2213, 60 L.Ed.2d 777, 791 (1979). A presumption is an evidentiary device which enables the trier of fact to determine the existence of an element of the crime, an "ultimate" fact, from the existence of one or more "evidentiary" or "basic" facts. Ulster County Court, 442 U.S. at 156, 60 L.Ed.2d at 791. Such a device may be employed in a criminal case so long as the presumption does "not undermine the factfinder's responsibility at trial, based on evidence adduced by the State, to find the ultimate facts beyond a reasonable doubt." Ulster County Court, 442 U.S. at 156, 60 L.Ed.2d at 791. A permissive presumption is one which "allows - but does not require - the trier of fact to infer the elemental fact from proof by the prosecutor of the basis one and that places no burden of any kind on the defendant." Ulster County Court v. Allen, 442 U.S. 140, 157, 99 S.Ct. 2213, 60 L.Ed.2d 777, 792. In this situation, the "basic fact may constitute prima facie evidence of the elemental fact." Id. at 157, 60 L.Ed.2d at 792. Because this permissive

presumption leaves the trier of fact free to credit or reject the inference and does not shift the burden of proof, it affects the application of the reasonable doubt standard "only if, under the facts of the case, there is no rational way the trier could make the connection permitted by the inference." Id.

It is axiomatic that courts are obliged to uphold the constitutionality of statutes if possible. In <u>State v. Kinner</u>, 398 So. 2d 1360, 1363 (Fla. 1981), this Court spoke of this obligation as follows:

[W]e are aware of the strong presumption in favor of the constitutionality of statutes. It is well established that all doubt will be resolved in favor of the constitutionality of a statute, . . . and that an act will not be declared unconstitutional unless it is determined to be invalid beyond a reasonable doubt.

See also State v. Burch, 545 So. 2d 279, 280 (Fla. 4th DCA 1989),
approved, 558 So. 2d 1, 3 (Fla. 1990).

In determining the constitutionality of a provision such as §812.14(3), the court must determine whether the challenged portion of the statute creates a mandatory presumption or merely a permissive inference. Francis v. Franklin, 471 U.S. 307, 105 S.Ct. 1965, 85 L.Ed.2d 344, 353 (1985). A permissive inference "allows, but does not require, the trier of fact to infer the elemental fact from proof by the prosecutor of the basic one and . . . places no burden of any kind on the defendant." Ulster County Court, 442 U.S. at 157, 60 L.Ed.2d at 792. In this situation, "the basic fact may constitute prima facie evidence of the elemental fact." Id. The permissive presumption "does not

relieve the State of its burden of persuasion because it still requires the State to convince the jury that the suggested conclusion should be inferred based on the predicate facts proved." Francis, 471 U.S. at 314, 85 L.Ed.2d at 353. In contrast, a mandatory presumption "tells the trier of fact that he or they must find the elemental fact upon proof of the basic fact, at least unless the defendant has come forward with some evidence to rebut the presumed connection between the two facts." Ulster County Court, 442 U.S. 157, 60 L.Ed.2d at 792.

Traditionally, the use of the word "shall" indicates a mandatory nondiscretionary duty. <u>Ute Indian Tribe of Utah v. Hodel</u>, 673 F.Supp. 619, 621 (D.D.C. 1987). A court, however, may always investigate beyond "ritualistic incantation" of this standard rule. <u>Id.</u>; <u>FBI v. Abramson</u>, 456 U.S. 615, 625 n. 7, 102 S.Ct. 2054, 2061 n. 7, 72 L.Ed.2d 376 (1982)(despite plain meaning rule, court's duty is to find interpretation most harmonious with statutory scheme and general purposes that Congress manifested).

Florida Statute §812.14(3) provides:

The presence on property in the actual possession of a person of any device or alteration which effects the diversion or use of the services of a utility, cable television service, or community antenna line service so as to avoid the registration of such use by or on a meter installed by the utility so as to otherwise avoid the reporting of use of such service for payment shall be prima facie evidence of the violation of this section by such person.

However, the subsection then goes on to provide that this "presumption shall not apply unless:

- a) The presence of such a device or alteration can be attributed only to a deliberate act in futherance of an intent to avoid payment for utility services;
- b) The person charged has received the direct benefit of the reduction of the cost of such utility services;
- c) The customer or recipient of the utility services has received the direct benefit of such utility service for at least one full billing cycle.

The statutory presumption created by §812.14(3) does not arise unless and until the Respondent first establishes the three conditions set forth in the statute. Only then does the statute provide a presumption that presence of the device or diversion on property in the defendant's actual possession ". . . shall be prima facie evidence of the violation of this section" by the defendant. §812.14(3), Fla. Stat. The statute merely directs the trial judge that proof of the foregoing establishes a prima facie case sufficient to submit the case to the trier of fact for resolution. It does not require the trier of fact to accept the presumption. Nor does it require the defendant to present evidence to establish his innocence. The circumstances shown by the evidence, aided by the well-established presumption of innocence, may operate to rebut or impair the prima facie case made by the State. State v. Waters, 436 So. 2d 66, 70 n. 4 (Fla. Thus, §812.14(3) merely creates a permissive presumption which the jury is free to accept or reject.

The trial court concluded that use of the phrase "shall be prima facie evidence of the violation of this section" creates a mandatory rebuttable presumption. Section 812.14(3), Fla. Stat.

(1991). (R 67, 69) However, this Court has consistently ruled that the language "shall be prima facie evidence" creates a permissive, not a mandatory, presumption. State v. Rolle, 560 So. 2d 1154, 1157 (Fla. 1990), cert. denied, 498 U.S. 867, 111 S.Ct. 181, 112 L.Ed.2d 144 (1990); State v. Waters, 436 So. 2d 66 (Fla. 1983); State v. Ferrari, 398 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 1981).

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